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Independent auditors' report

To the Shareholders of ARB Holdings Limited and its 
subsidiaries
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of 

ARB Holdings Limited set out on pages 51 to 90, which comprise the 

statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the statements 

of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and 

statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, 

comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Company's Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 

the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such 

internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 

preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and 

separate statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 

consolidated and separate financial statements are free of material 

misstatement.

An audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 

entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements 

present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate 

financial position of ARB Holdings Limited as at 30 June 2014, and its 

consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated 

and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of 

the Companies Act in South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 

statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, we have read the 

Directors' report, the Audit Committee's report and the statement of 

the Company Secretary for the purpose of identifying whether there 

are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited 

consolidated and separate financial statements. These reports are the 

responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these 

reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these 

reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial 

statements. However, we have not audited these reports and, 

accordingly, do not express an opinion on these reports.

PKF Durban

Registered Auditors Chartered Accountants (SA) 

Practice number: 906352E

Partner: TC Marti-Warren RA CA(SA)

Durban

19 August 2014
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Directors' responsibilities and approval

The Directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa to 

maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the 

content and integrity of the annual fi nancial statements and related 

fi nancial information included in this report. It is their responsibility 

to ensure that the consolidated annual fi nancial statements satisfy 

the fi nancial reporting standards as to form and content and present 

fairly the consolidated and separate statement of fi nancial position, 

results of operations and business of the Group, and explain the 

transactions and fi nancial position of the business of the Group at the 

end of the fi nancial year. The consolidated annual fi nancial statements 

are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 

throughout the Group and supported by reasonable and prudent 

judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for 

the system of internal fi nancial control established by the Company 

and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 

environment. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, 

the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the 

risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include 

the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defi ned 

framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 

segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 

controls are monitored throughout the Group and all employees are 

required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 

Group's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, 

managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Group. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group endeavours 

to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, 

systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 

predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and 

explanations given by management and the external auditors, that 

the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 

fi nancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the consolidated 

and separate annual fi nancial statements. However, any system of 

internal fi nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatement or loss. The going-concern 

basis has been adopted in preparing the fi nancial statements. Based on 

forecasts and available cash resources the Directors have no reason to 

believe that the Group will not be a going concern in the foreseeable 

future. The consolidated fi nancial statements support the viability of 

the Group.

The fi nancial statements have been audited by the independent 

auditing fi rm, PKF Durban, who have been given unrestricted access 

to all fi nancial records and related data, including minutes of all 

meetings of shareholders, the Board of Directors and committees of 

the Board. The Directors believe that all representations made to the 

independent auditor during the audit were valid and appropriate. 

The external auditors' unqualifi ed audit report is presented on 

page 44.

The consolidated and separate annual fi nancial statements as set out 

on pages 46 to 90 were approved by the Board on 19 August 2014 and 

were signed on their behalf by:

 

AR Burke B Nichles

Non-Executive Chairman Group Chief Executive Offi cer

Statement of the Company Secretary
I certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the requirements as stated in section 88(2) of the Companies Act, 2008 of South Africa, 

have been met and that all returns, as required of a public company in terms of the aforementioned Act, have been submitted to the Companies 

and Intellectual Property Commission and that such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Mario Louw

Company Secretary

19 August 2014
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Directors' report

The Directors present their report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

1.  Nature of business and operations
ARB Holdings Ltd is a holding and investment company which  

owns fixed property and vehicles for letting, as well as investments 

in closely related trading and distribution businesses.

ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, a majority owned 

subsidiary (74%), is the Company's largest operating subsidiary. 

It is a black empowered electrical wholesaler operating in 

southern and South Africa offering a wide range of locally 

manufactured and imported products including power and 

instrumentation cabling, overhead line hardware and conductor, 

insulators, transformers and general electrical contracting 

materials. Clients range across large and heavy industry, 

parastatals, major construction groups, mining houses and 

electrical contractors.

ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary, services 

all the Group's IT requirements and sells computer hardware, 

software support services and an accounting management 

system known as Xact.

ARB Global (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary, sells a range 

of locally manufactured and imported electrical products 

across South African borders.

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd, a majority owned subsidiary (60%), imports 

and distributes electrical light fittings, lamps and related 

accessories principally in South Africa.

CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd, a wholly-

owned subsidiary, is the distributor for the CHINT low voltage 

products in the SADC region.

2.  Financial results
The operating results and consolidated statement of financial 

position of the Group are fully set out in the attached financial 

statements and do not, in our opinion, require any further 

comment.

3.  Events after reporting date
The Directors are not aware of any significant events which 

occurred subsequent to year-end and up to the date of this 

report.

4.  Directors' interest in contracts
No material contracts in which Directors have an interest were 

entered into during the year other than the transactions 

detailed in note 27 to the annual financial statements.

5.  Share capital
Authorised share capital:
The authorised share capital amounts to R100 000, being  

1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were  

no changes in the authorised share capital during the year 

under review.

Issued share capital:
The issued share capital amounts to R23 500, being 235 000 000 

ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were no changes in 

the issued share capital during the year under review.

6.  Management by third and related parties
Neither the business of the Company nor its subsidiaries, nor 

any part thereof, has been managed by a third person or a 

company in which a Director had an interest during the year 

under review.

7.  Dividends
A final dividend was declared and paid to shareholders during 

the year under review of R61 570 000 (26,20 cents per share) 

[2013: R32 195 000 (13,70 cents per share)].

Subsequent to year-end, the Board declared a final dividend to 

shareholders of 20,1 cents per share. This is in line with the 

Company's dividend policy to distribute up to a maximum of 

forty per cent of net profit after taxation, taking into account 

distributable reserves and cash available for distribution. The 

Board also resolved to declare a special dividend of 10,0 cents 

per share.

8.  Directors
The Directors of the company during the year and to the date of 

this report are as follows:

AR Burke – Non-Executive Chairman

B Nichles – Group Chief Executive Officer

WR Neasham – Group Financial Director

ST Downes – Independent Non-Executive Director

RB Patmore – Lead Independent Non-Executive Director

G Pretorius – Independent Non-Executive Director

JR Modise – Non-Executive Director

9.  Secretary
The Secretary of the Company is M Louw, whose business and 

postal address are the following: 

11 Larch Nook, Zwartkop X4, Centurion, 0046

PO Box 23305, Gezina, 0031
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10. Subsidiaries
% Held Number of shares held

Name and nature of business

Issued 

capital 

(R) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Subsidiaries of ARB Holdings Ltd
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd 10 000 74 74 7 400 7 400
(Co. reg. 2004/012797/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd 100 100 100 100 100
(Co. reg. 2007/017066/07)
(IT service provider)
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd 100 100 100 100 100
(Co. reg. 2008/008202/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd 1 900 60 60 1 140 1 140
(Co. reg. 2000/019019/07)
(Import/export lighting wholesaler)
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2012/185983/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)
Subsidiaries of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd 184 100 100 184 184
(Co. reg. 2005/040265/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd 3 000 100 100 2 000 2 000
(Co. reg. 1959/001860/07)
(Electrical wholesaler)
Subsidiaries of Eurolux (Pty) Ltd
Cathay Lighting International (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2004/014460/07)
(Import/export lighting wholesaler)
N-Ex Trading (Pty) Ltd 102 100 100 102 102
(Co. reg. 2005/028424/07)
(Electronic equipment trader)
Njabulo Cables (Pty) Ltd 120 100 100 120 120
(Co. reg. 2007/020504/07)
(Import/export electrical wholesaler)

2014 2013

The Company's share of the aggregate profits after tax from subsidiaries 97 434 053 73 136 640

All subsidiaries are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa.
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Directors' report (continued)

11. Auditors
PKF Durban, Chartered Accountants (SA), Registered Auditors, 

will continue in office as auditors of the Company in accordance 

with section 90(1) of the Companies Act, 2008 of South Africa, 

subject to shareholder approval at the upcoming Annual  

General Meeting.

12.  Directors’ shareholding in the issued share capital 
of the Company

Number of shares held

Percentage 
heldDirector

Direct
 beneficially

Indirect
 beneficially

2014
Alan R Burke* 
(Chairman) 18 523 077 100 519 313 50.7
Byron Nichles (CEO) – 2 550 000 1.1
Simon Downes *> – 600 000 0.3
William Neasham 
(Group Financial 
Director) 4 861 539 75 000 2.1
Clinton Cockerell ** 11 753 846 24 000 5.0
Jason Burke ** 65 200 – 0.0
Derrick Muller *** 2 170 000 – 0.9
Blayne Burke** 65 200 – 0.0
Shannon Bester** 10 000 – 0.0

2013
Alan R Burke* 
(Chairman) 18 523 077 100 519 313 50.7
Byron Nichles (CEO) – 2 550 000 1.1
Simon Downes *> – 479 669 0.2
William Neasham 
(Group Financial 
Director) 4 861 539 75 000 2.1
Craig Robertson 
(resigned 1 July 2012) 12 439 719 244 008 5.4
Clinton Cockerell ** 12 153 846 24 000 5.2
Jason Burke ** 62 700 – 0.0
Derrick Muller *** 2 170 000 – 0.9
Blayne Burke** 62 700 – 0.0
Shannon Bester** 10 000 – 0.0

* Non-Executive  > Independent
** Director of subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd
*** Director of subsidiary, ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd

No shares were traded by any Director from 30 June 2014 until 

the date of this report, except for Clinton Cockerell who disposed 

of 4 500 shares on 26 June 2014 which was effected in the share 

register after 30 June 2014.

13. Borrowings
On behalf of the Group, the Directors have established credit 

facilities with various financial institutions for use by the Company 

and its subsidiary companies. The Directors did not exceed any 

authorised levels of borrowings during the year under review.

14. Settlement of share options
During the year, the Directors approved the settlement of the 

remaining share options by offering the participants to participate 

in the Share Appreciation Rights Scheme or a cash settlement. 

The cash settlement of R792 000 as a result of this has been 

charged to profit and loss during the year.

15. Special resolutions
The following special resolutions were passed by the Company 

during the year under review:

Special resolution 1: General authority to repurchase 
Company shares
RESOLVED THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby 

authorised, by way of a general authority, to repurchase on behalf 

of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, ordinary shares 

issued by the Company, in accordance with the Companies Act, 

and in particular, subject to section 48(8)(b) thereof, the Company's 

Memorandum of Incorporation, as amended or substituted, and 

the Listings Requirements of the JSE, and provided that:

•  any such acquisition of ordinary shares shall be effected 

through the order book operated by the JSE trading system 

and done without any prior understanding or arrangement 

between the Company and the counter-party;

•  this general authority shall only be valid until the Company's 

next Annual General Meeting, provided that it shall not extend 

beyond 15 months from the date of the passing of this special 

resolution;

•  an announcement setting out such details as may be required 

in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE will be 

published on SENS once the Company or any of its subsidiaries 

has acquired ordinary shares constituting, on a cumulative 

basis, 3% of the initial number of ordinary shares in issue as at 

the time the general authority was granted and for each 3% in 

aggregate of the initial number of shares acquired thereafter;

•  in terms of the general authority, the acquisition of ordinary 

shares in any one financial year may not exceed, in aggregate, 

20% of the Company's issued share capital of that class, at the 

time the approval is granted, and the acquisition of shares by a 

subsidiary of the Company, in any one financial year, may not 

exceed, in aggregate, 10% of the number of issued shares of 

the Company of that class;

•  in determining the price at which the Company's ordinary 

shares are acquired by the Company and/or any of its 

subsidiaries in terms of this general authority, the maximum 
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premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will 

be 10% of the weighted average market price at which such 

ordinary shares are traded on the JSE, as determined over the 

five business days immediately preceding the date of the 

acquisition of such ordinary shares by the Company and/or any 

of its subsidiaries;

•  a resolution shall be passed by the Board of Directors that it 

has authorised the repurchase, that the Company and its 

subsidiaries have passed the solvency and liquidity tests as 

required by section 46 of the Companies Act and that, since the 

test was performed, there have been no material changes to 

the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries;

•  the Company will only appoint one agent to effect any 

repurchase(s) on its behalf; and

•  the Company and/or its subsidiaries will not acquire the 

Company's shares during a prohibited period as defined in 

paragraph 3.67 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE unless 

they have in place a repurchase programme where the dates 

and quantities of securities to be traded during the relevant 

period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and full details of 

the programme have been disclosed in an announcement on 

SENS prior to the commencement of the prohibited period.

Special resolution 2: Non-Executive Directors' 
remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2014
RESOLVED THAT the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, 

in the form of fees for their services as Directors, for the year 

ending 30 June 2014 as set out below, be and is hereby approved 

as contemplated in section 66(9) of the Companies Act:

Chairman of the Board

•  Retainer of R220 000 per annum

•  R25 000 per Board meeting chaired

•  R10 000 per sub-committee meeting attended

Lead Independent Director

•  Retainer of R158 000 per annum

•  R10 000 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Non-Executive Director

•  Retainer of R138 000 per annum

•  R10 000 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended

Sub-committee Chairman

•  R15 000 per sub-committee meeting chaired

Special resolution 3: Financial assistance for 
subscription of securities
RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised, in 

terms of a general authority contemplated in section 44(3)(a)(ii) 

of the Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of 

this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 

by way of a loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise 

as defined in section 44 of the Companies Act to any person for 

the purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription of any 

option, or any securities, issued or to be issued by the Company 

or a related or inter-related company, or the purchase of any 

securities of the Company or a related or inter-related company, 

subject to the Board of Directors of the Company being satisfied 

that:

(i)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, 

immediately after providing such financial assistance, the 

Company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test (as 

contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(ii)  pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the 

terms under which such financial assistance is proposed to be 

given are fair and reasonable to the Company; and

(iii)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting of 

such financial assistance set out in the Company’s 

Memorandum of Incorporation and/or the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.

Special resolution 4: Financial assistance to 
Directors, prescribed officers, Group incentive 
scheme participants and related or inter-related 
companies and corporations
RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised, in 

terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) 

of the Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of 

this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 

as defined in section 45(1) of the Companies Act to the following 

categories of persons:

(i)  a Director or prescribed officer of the Company or of a 

related or inter-related company;

(ii)  a related or inter-related company or corporation;

(iii)  a member of a related or inter-related company or 

corporation;

(iv)  a beneficiary participating in any Group incentive scheme; 

and/or

(v)  a person related to any person contemplated in (i) to (iv) 

above, subject to the Board of Directors of the Company 

being satisfied that:

(a)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, 

immediately after providing such financial assistance, 

the Company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test 

(as contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);

(b)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the 

terms under which such financial assistance is proposed 

to be given are fair and reasonable to the Company; and
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Directors' report (continued)

(c)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting 

of such financial assistance set out in the Company's 

Memorandum of Incorporation and/or the Listings 

Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.

The following special resolutions were passed by the Company's 

subsidiaries during the year under review:

• ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• Eurolux (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance

• ARB Global (Pty) Limited:

–  General authority to provide direct or indirect financial 

assistance
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Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets
Investment property 3 – – 163 230 732 145 162 955
Property, plant and equipment 4 205 525 741 193 621 122 7 697 782 11 844 464
Intangible assets 5 83 971 012 84 411 012 – –
Investment in subsidiaries 6 – – 78 007 720 78 007 720
Deferred taxation 15 13 188 062 11 859 022 – –

302 684 815 289 891 156 248 936 234 235 015 139

Current assets
Inventory 7 391 348 367 341 664 080 – –
Taxation overpaid 122 403 371 335 – –
Deferred lease income 8 – – – 3 193 226
Loans receivable 17 – – 72 702 134 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables 9 341 923 670 311 679 041 10 515 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents 10 197 583 559 202 790 340 546 518 60 849 521

930 977 999 856 504 796 73 259 167 111 089 104

Total assets 1 233 662 814 1 146 395 952 322 195 401 346 104 243

Equity and liabilities
Equity and reserves
Share capital 11 23 500 23 500 23 500 23 500
Share premium 116 149 999 116 149 999 116 149 999 116 149 999
Revaluation reserve 60 100 099 60 557 266 62 061 693 60 560 672
Capital reserve 12 – – 26 234 082 26 234 082
Accumulated profits 536 121 874 479 500 982 94 072 870 103 686 031

Attributable to ARB ordinary shareholders 712 395 472 656 231 747 298 542 144 306 654 284
Non-controlling interests 199 838 706 172 855 383 – –

912 234 178 829 087 130 298 542 144 306 654 284

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 15 34 127 052 37 893 015 15 558 818 17 268 807

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 284 117 924 275 045 109 7 007 821 2 996 388
Vendor – loan account 13 18 466 2 259 274 – –
Taxation payable 2 724 914 1 237 435 886 590 14 737
Loans payable 17 – – 200 028 19 170 027
Deferred lease payments 18 440 201 836 541 – –
Bank overdraft 10 79 37 448 – –

287 301 584 279 415 807 8 094 439 22 181 152

Total equity and liabilities 1 233 662 814 1 146 395 952 322 195 401 346 104 243

Statements of financial position
at 30 June 2014
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Statements of comprehensive income
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenue 2 216 658 993 1 944 540 972 27 986 940 28 853 444
Cost of sales (1 689 708 863) (1 519 421 012) – –

Gross profit 526 950 130 425 119 960 27 986 940 28 853 444
Other income 4 878 033 5 807 081 15 079 823 18 558 255
Overheads (328 798 592) (270 451 546) (17 128 579) (11 680 186)

Profit before interest and taxation 19 203 029 571 160 475 495 25 938 184 35 731 513
Dividend received – subsidiary – – 31 200 000 18 500 000
Interest received 21 11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599
Interest paid 22 (189 316) (971 079) (1 965 201) (785 777)

Profit before taxation 214 282 465 169 922 586 61 874 461 59 102 335
Taxation 23 (59 708 250) (46 242 292) (8 416 601) (10 448 709)

Profit for the year 154 574 215 123 680 294 53 457 860 48 653 626

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss
Revaluation of property (1 347 708) 8 657 662 – –
Taxation 890 541 2 270 360 – –

Total other comprehensive income (457 167) 10 928 022 – –

Total comprehensive income 154 117 048 134 608 316 53 457 860 48 653 626

Profit for the year attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 36 383 323 28 550 671
ARB ordinary shareholders 118 190 892 95 129 623

154 574 215 123 680 294

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 36 383 323 28 550 671
ARB ordinary shareholders 117 733 725 106 057 645

154 117 048 134 608 316

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents) 25.1 50,29 40,48
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 25.1 50,29 40,42
Headline earning per share (cents 25.2 50,28 39,55
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 25.2 50,28 39,49
Dividends per share (cents) 25.4 26,20 13,70
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Statements of changes in equity
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Figures in Rand

Share 

capital

Share 

premium

Revaluation 

reserve

Accumulated 

profits

Equity 

attributable

to ARB

 ordinary 

shareholders

Non-

controlling 

interests Total

Group
Balance at 1 July 2012 23 500 116 149 999 49 629 244 416 566 359 582 369 102 150 804 712 733 173 814
Total comprehensive  
income for the year – – 10 928 022 95 129 623 106 057 645 28 550 671 134 608 316

Profit for the year – – – 95 129 623 95 129 623 28 550 671 123 680 294
Other comprehensive  
income – – 10 928 022 – 10 928 022 – 10 928 022

Dividends – – – (32 195 000) (32 195 000) (6 500 000) (38 695 000)

Balance at 30 June 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 557 266 479 500 982 656 231 747 172 855 383 829 087 130

Balance at 1 July 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 557 266 479 500 982 656 231 747 172 855 383 829 087 130

Total comprehensive  
income for the year – – (457 167) 118 190 892 117 733 725 36 383 323 154 117 048

Profit for the year – – – 118 190 892 118 190 892 36 383 323 154 574 215
Other comprehensive  
income – – (457 167) – (457 167) – (457 167)

Dividends – – – (61 570 000) (61 570 000) (9 400 000) (70 970 000)

Balance at 30 June 2014 23 500 116 149 999 60 100 099 536 121 874 712 395 472 199 838 706 912 234 178

Figures in Rand

Share

capital

Share 

premium

Revaluation 

reserve

Capital 

reserve

Accumulated 

profits Total

Company
Balance at 1 July 2012 23 500 116 149 999 46 339 620 26 234 082 101 448 457 290 195 658
Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – 48 653 626 48 653 626
Dividends – – – – (32 195 000) (32 195 000)
Revaluation of investment properties – – 14 221 052 – (14 221 052) –

Balance at 30 June 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 560 672 26 234 082 103 686 031 306 654 284

Balance at 1 July 2013 23 500 116 149 999 60 560 672 26 234 082 103 686 031 306 654 284

Total comprehensive income for the year – – – – 53 457 860 53 457 860
Dividends – – – – (61 570 000) (61 570 000)
Revaluation of investment properties – – 1 501 021 – (1 501 021) –

Balance at 30 June 2014 23 500 116 149 999 62 061 693 26 234 082 94 072 870 298 542 144
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Statements of cash flows
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in R Note(s) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Profit for the year 154 574 215 123 680 294 53 457 860 48 653 626
Adjustments for: 
Interest paid 189 316 971 079 1 965 201 785 777
Income tax 59 708 250 46 242 292 8 416 601 10 448 709
Amortisation of intangible assets 440 000 – – –
Depreciation 11 495 977 7 989 590 1 512 776 2 171 699
Interest received (11 442 210) (10 418 170) (6 701 478) (5 656 599)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (57 874) (32 296) – (48 358)
Change in fair value of property – – (1 845 518) (10 033 358)
Dividends received – – (31 200 000) (18 500 000)
Operating lease smoothing (396 340) 332 810 3 193 226 1 375 696
Bargain purchase price  – (2 928 092) – – 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 214 511 334 165 837 507 28 798 668 29 197 192
Working capital changes
Increase in inventories (49 684 287) (19 079 000) – –
Increase in trade and other receivables (30 244 629) 35 746 248 332 368 (284 796)
Increase in trade and other payables 9 072 815 14 651 164 4 011 433 1 096 971 

Cash generated by operating activities 143 655 233 197 155 919 33 142 469 30 009 367
Interest received 11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599
Interest paid (189 316) (971 079) (1 965 201) (785 777)
Dividends received – – 31 200 000 18 500 000
Dividends paid (70 970 000) (38 695 000) (61 570 000) (32 195 000)
Income tax paid (62 176 300) (49 328 336) (9 254 737) (9 839 839)

Net cash from operating activities 21 761 827 118 579 674 (1 745 991) 11 345 350 

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment property acquired 3 – – (16 222 259) (3 700 599)
Property, plant and equipment acquired 4 (28 767 527) (23 600 024) (41 963) (260 294)
Intangible assets acquired 5 – (440 000) – –
Investment properties improved – – – (1 392 337)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 4 077 096 4 338 063 2 675 869 1 981 420
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties – – – 2 060 000
Subscription for subsidiary share capital – – – (120)
Significant business combinations effected – (59 641 825) – –

Net cash utilised in investing activities (24 690 431) (79 343 786) (13 588 353) (1 311 930)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans (repaid)/raised (2 240 808) (370 812) (18 969 999) (84 922 785)
Repayment of interest-bearing loan – (15 481 702) – –
Loans receivable advances – – (25 998 660) (6 164 768) 

Net cash utilised in financing activities (2 240 808) (15 852 514) (44 968 659) (91 087 553)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5 169 412) 23 383 374 (60 303 003) (81 054 133)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 202 752 892 179 369 518 60 849 521 141 903 654 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10 197 583 480 202 752 892 546 518 60 849 521
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Accounting policies
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

1.  General information
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the SAICA Financial 

Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial 

Reporting Standards Council and the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 of South Africa. These policies have been applied consistently to all years 

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.  Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting policies listed below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that may affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 

results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 

other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, or in the period of the revision and future 

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas 

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.1.

Adoption of new and revised pronouncements
In the current year, the Group has adopted all new and revised IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and 

the IFRS Interpretations Committee that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 1 July 2013. 

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs has not resulted in any significant changes to the Group's accounting policies, except for 

additional disclosures.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, the following IFRSs were adopted:

IFRS/IFRIC Title and details Effective

IAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets  
and Financial Liabilities

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12  
(Amendments)

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint 
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests  
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Amendment from Issue of IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2009–2011 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2013

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not applied the following new, revised or amended pronouncements that have been issued by the IASB as they are not yet 

effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2013 (the list does not include information about first-time adopters of IFRS since they are 
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Accounting policies (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

not relevant to the Group). The Board anticipates that the new standards, amendments and interpretations will be adopted in the Group's 

consolidated financial statements when they become effective. The Group has assessed, where practicable, the potential impact of all these 

new standards, amendments and interpretations that will be effective in future periods.

IFRS/IFRIC Title and details Effective

IFRS 2 Share-based payments (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (Annual Improvements  
to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Annual  
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IFRS 15 Revenue Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2017

IFRS 9, IFRS 7 (Amendments) Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9  
and Transition Disclosures

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2018

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 24 Related party disclosures (Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 38 Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements to 
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 40 Investment Property (Annual Improvements  
to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 July 2014

IAS 27 Separate Financial statements Annual periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2014

IAS 36 (Amendment) Recoverable amount, Disclosures of  
non-financial assets

Annual periods commencing on or  
after 1 January 2014

All applicable standards will be complied with in the financial statements of the period ending 30 June 2015. Compliance with these 

amendments, revisions and improvements require additional disclosure compared to that required in terms of existing IFRS. Management 

will perform an assessment of the impact of all applicable standards that will apply for the period ending 30 June 2015.

2.1   Accounting estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of inventory

The inventory obsolescence provision is management's estimate, based on historic sales trends and its assessment of quality and 

volume, and the extent to which the merchandise for resale on hand at reporting date will not be sold or will be sold below cost.

Impairment of trade receivables

Provision is made for doubtful debts based on management's estimate of the prospect of recovering the debt. Where management 

has determined that the recovery of the debt is doubtful, the amount is provided for immediately.
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Residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values where appropriate. Assessments 

of useful lives and residual values are performed annually after considering factors such as relevant market information, the condition 

of the asset and management's consideration. In assessing the residual values, the Group considers the remaining life of the assets, 

their projected disposal value and future market conditions.

• Motor vehicles

The Group has a policy of utilising all motor vehicles for a period of five years. It is estimated that motor vehicles have a residual 

value approximating 20% – 60%, depending on their age, of their initial purchase price based on historical sales trends.

• Delivery vehicles

The Group has a policy of utilising all delivery vehicles for a period of four years. It is estimated that delivery vehicles have a residual 

value approximating 20% – 30% of their initial purchase price based on historical sales trends.

• Plant and equipment

Due to the specialised nature of the Group's plant and equipment, the residual values of these assets have been estimated to be nil. 

The Group estimates that the useful life of these assets, being the period of time for which the assets can be utilised, without 

significant modifications, replacements or improvements, is five to 15 years based on the current levels of use and repairs and 

maintenance costs incurred.

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
The Group tests for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently if there are indicators that the intangible assets and 

goodwill may be impaired.

• Software development costs

The Group has classified the development costs of its ERP software package as an intangible asset, which it has determined as 

having a useful life of 10 years.

• Goodwill

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. For this calculation, the 

discounted cash flow method is used, taking into account financial forecasts approved by management over a five-year period. Key 

assumptions applied in value-in-use of the cash generating unit's revenue, gross profit and cost forecasts are based on 

management's views and estimates. These cash flows are then discounted and compared to the current carrying value and, if 

lower, the assets are impaired to the present value of the cash flows. A discount rate of 20% has been used, taking into account the 

level of risk associated with the cash generating unit.

• Trademarks – Eurolux Brand

The recoverable amount of the intangible asset is determined using the relief from royalties methodology. Key assumptions applied 

when using this method is the historical growth rate of revenue. The average growth rates used are 10% for the five-year period  

and then 4% beyond the five-year forecast period. The discount rate of 20% has been used, based on the cost of equity to Eurolux 

(Pty) Ltd. The trademark is considered to have an indefinite useful life as it already has been in existence for over 20 years and it is  

self-evident that a trademark can endure for many decades.

• Trademarks – Horizon Brand

The recoverable amount of the intangible asset was determined based on cost as the asset was acquired in June 2013.  

The trademark has been amortised in full during the year.

Revaluation of land and buildings and investment properties
The Group values the land and buildings and investment properties with reference to current market conditions, recent sales 

transactions of similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income.

Fair value measurement and valuation process
The measurement of non-financial assets at fair value takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits 

by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use.



Annual financial statements

58 // ARB Integrated report 2014

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 

fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

•  Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable

• Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers 

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed 

in notes 3, 4 and 28.

Critical judgements in applying the company's accounting policies
Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into leases over properties, motor vehicles and equipment. As management has determined that the 

Company has not obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the properties, motor vehicles and equipment, the 

leases have been classified as operating leases and accounted for accordingly.

Contingent liabilities

Management applies its judgement to advice it receives from its attorneys, advocates and other advisors in assessing if an obligation 

is probable, more likely than not, or remote. This judgement application is used to determine if the obligation is recognised as a 

liability in the form of a provision or disclosed as a contingent liability.

Control over subsidiaries

An assessment of control was performed by the Group based on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant 

activities unilaterally. In making the judgement, the relative size and dispersion of other vote holders, potential voting rights held by 

them or others, rights from other contractual arrangements were considered. After the assessment, the Group concluded that they 

had a dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries and it would take a number of vote holders to outvote 

the Group, therefore the Group has control over the subsidiaries.

2.2  Basis of consolidation
These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of ARB Holdings Ltd and entities controlled by it and its 

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the investor has power over the investee, is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. If facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes to one or more of the elements of control, the investor shall reassess whether it controls the investee.

An investor can have power over an investee even if it holds less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee. All facts and 

circumstances are considered in assessing whether or not voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, for example, 

through:

• contractual arrangements with other vote holders;

•  rights from other contractual arrangements that indicate that the Company has the current ability to direct the relevant activities 

of the investee;

• the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders; or

• potential voting rights held by the Company that are substantive.

Investment in subsidiaries
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an investee and ceases when the investor loses 

control of an investee.

The purchase or acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of  

the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transferred, equity instruments issues and liabilities incurred at the date 

of exchange.

Accounting policies (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately from the equity 

attributable to equity owners of the parent company. Non-controlling shareholders' interest may initially be measured either at fair 

value or at the non-controlling shareholders' interests proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. 

The choice of measurement basis is made on each acquisition individually. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-

controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent 

changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling 

interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group ceases to have control of a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date 

when control is lost with the adjustment being recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the controlling 

interest. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the 

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for acquisition is measured at the fair 

values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Company in order to obtain control of the 

acquiree (at the date of exchange). Costs incurred in connection with the acquisition are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair value at the 

acquisition date (date the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Adjustments are made 

to fair values to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. The costs of integrating 

and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post acquisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are subsequently 

adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised when new information about its existence 

is obtained during this period.

Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the fair value of any 

previously held interests and the recognised value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition date 

amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Gains and losses on 

the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

2.3  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for land and buildings, is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. Depreciation is computed by allocating the depreciable amount of an asset on a systematic basis over its useful 

life and is applied separately to each identifiable component. Residual values and useful lives are assessed at the end of every 

financial year and the year's depreciation determined.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for an indication whether or not the relevant asset is 

impaired. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-

generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. Impairment losses and reversals are recognised directly in the 

statement of comprehensive income under the line item "other expenses" unless such reversals relate to previously recognised 

revaluation reserves in equity.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated in the 

statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation and less any subsequent 

accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ 

materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such land and buildings is credited in equity to the properties' revaluation reserve 

except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss in which case the 

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on 
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the revaluation of such land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the 

properties' revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives as follows:
Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years
Office furniture and fittings 6 years
Office equipment 5 to 6 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
Buildings 50 years
Vehicles 4 to 5 years

Land is not depreciated.

Where the estimated residual value of an asset is above its carrying value, no depreciation is raised.

2.4  Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to 

the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets. For 

all other intangible assets, amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indicators that the 

intangible assets may be impaired.

2.5  Impairment
The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable amount is estimated as the 

higher of the net selling price and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. An impairment loss is recognised 

whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are separately 

disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income, above the profit before tax subtotal.

For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is 

determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount 

of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable 

amount, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no 

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

2.6  Investment property
Investment property in the Company, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured initially at 

cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses 

arising from changes in fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

2.7  Leased assets
Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating 

leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of 

penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

Accounting policies (continued)
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Assets held for operating leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Income is recognised on a straight-line basis over 

the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefits are diminished.

2.8  Inventory
Inventory consists of power and instrumentation cable, overhead line conductor and equipment, general electrical contracting 

materials and lamps and light fittings purchased for resale and is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined 

using the weighted average cost basis. Adequate provision is made for obsolete, redundant and slow moving inventory.

2.9  Financial instruments
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or 

an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments are recognised when 

the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

issue of the financial instrument, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair 

value, excluding transaction costs which are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred 

and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon 

initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 

purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss comprise derivative 

financial instruments, namely interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets 

at fair value through profit and loss are stated at fair value. Movements in fair values are recognised in profit and loss, unless they 

relate to derivatives designated and effective as hedging instruments, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss 

depends on the nature of the hedging relationship. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in fair value 

hedges of recognised assets and liabilities and firm commitments, and in cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions 

and foreign currency risks relating to firm commitments.

Fluctuations in the fair value of forward exchange contracts used to hedge currency risk of future cash flows, and their fair value of 

foreign currency monetary items on the statement of financial position, are recognised directly in other expenses or other income. 

This policy has been adopted as the relationship between the forward exchange contracts and the item being hedged does not meet 

certain conditions in order to qualify as a hedging relationship.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable amounts. Interest on overdue trade receivables is recognised as it accrues.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally classified 

as being short-term. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest  

rate method.

Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings
Bank overdrafts and interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of 

calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability.



Annual financial statements

62 // ARB Integrated report 2014

Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial position when there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 

the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Employee benefits 
Share-based payments 
Equity settled:
Options are measured at fair value at grant date using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model. The fair value is expensed on a 

straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on an estimate of the number of options that will eventually vest.

Equity settled share based payments are not adjusted for subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments granted but  

rather the number of equity instruments that are granted is adjusted based on the fulfilment of the attached non-market related 

vesting conditions.

Cash settled:
Share-linked instruments have been granted to certain employees in the Company. The fair value of the amount payable to the 

employee is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities. The fair value is initially measured at grant date 

and expensed over the period during which the employees are required to provide services in order to become unconditionally entitled 

to payment.

The fair value of the instruments granted is measured using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model, taking into account the terms 

and conditions upon which the instruments are granted. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. 

Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as employees' remuneration in profit or loss.

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of all short-term benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the Company has a 

present obligation to pay as a result of employees' services provided to the reporting date. The provisions have been calculated at 

undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.

Retirement benefits
The Company and its subsidiaries contribute to defined contribution funds. Contributions to defined contribution funds are charged 

against income as incurred.

2.11 Taxation
Current tax
The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year adjusted for items which are tax exempt or are not tax deductible. Tax 

is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on the comprehensive basis computed as the difference between the tax base and carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised 

for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets on temporary differences associated with investments in 

subsidiaries where the parent is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is not considered 

probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. It is the Group's policy to reinvest undistributed profits 

arising in Group companies.

Accounting policies (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 

the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

2.12 Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

• the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

•  the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 

control over the goods sold;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods 

and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the Company's right to receive payment has been established.

2.13 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is 

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will occur, and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the effect of discounting is material, provisions are discounted. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate.

2.14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, incurred in respect of assets that require a substantial period to prepare for its intended use, are capitalised up to 

the date that the development of the asset is substantially complete in order for the asset to be ready for its intended use. Borrowing 

costs are capitalised at the rates applicable to the related liability. Other borrowing costs are recognised directly in profit and loss 

when incurred.

2.15 Cost of sales
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 

revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised 

as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from 

an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period 

in which the reversal occurs.

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

2.16 Related parties
All subsidiaries, associated companies, major shareholders and key management personnel of the Group are related parties. A list 

of all transactions with major subsidiaries, associated companies, major shareholders and key management personnel is included 

in note 27. All transactions entered into with subsidiaries and associated companies have been eliminated in the consolidated 

financial statements. Directors' and key management personnel emoluments as well as transactions with other related parties are 

set out in notes 24 and 27 respectively. There were no other material contracts with related parties.

2.17 Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the  

period in which the dividends are approved by the company's Directors.

2.18 Contingencies and commitments
Transactions are classified as contingent liabilities where the Company's obligations depend on uncertain events and principally 

consist of contract specific third party obligations underwritten by banking institutions. Items are classified as commitments where 

the Company commits itself to future transactions, particularly in the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and cash floats. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at 

amortised cost.

2.20 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are converted to the respective functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the 

transaction. Gains or losses on translation are recognised in profit or loss. At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency 

monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on translating 

monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous 

annual financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

2.21 Earnings per share
Earnings per share is based on attributable profit for the year divided by the weighted number of ordinary shares in issue during the 

year. Fully diluted earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive effect on the earnings 

per share.

2.22 Headline earnings per share
Headline earnings per share is based on the same calculation as in 2.21 above except that attributable profit specifically excludes 

items as set out in Circular 02/2013: "Headline Earnings" issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants. Fully diluted 

headline earnings per share is presented when the inclusion of potential ordinary shares has a dilutive effect on headline earnings 

per share.

Accounting policies (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Notes to the annual financial statements
 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

3. Investment property
Opening carrying value – – 145 162 955 132 133 337
Additions at cost – – 16 222 259 5 092 936
Disposals at carrying value – – – (2 096 676)
Net valuation – – 1 845 518 10 033 358

– Revaluation – – (1 347 708) 8 657 662
– Deferred lease smoothing – – 3 193 226 1 375 696

Closing carrying value  – – 163 230 732 145 162 955

Described as:
• Sub 20 of Lot 1543, Isipingo, situate at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, in extent 23 500 square metres;
•  Remainder of Erf 3461, Durban North, Registration Division FU, situate at 1461 North Coast Road, Durban North, in extent 4 171 square 

metres;
• Sub 12 of Lot 2131, Pietermaritzburg, situate at 307 Boom Street, Pietermaritzburg, in extent 3 528 square metres;
• Erf 7704, Richards Bay (extension 24), situate at 63 Dollar Drive, Richards Bay, in extent 4 210 square metres;
• Erf 19168, East London, situate at 27 Rayon Road, East London, in extent 3 610 square metres;
• Lot 322, Alrode Extension 2, Johannesburg, situate at 8 Bosworth Street, Johannesburg, in extent 13 220 square metres;
• Erf 6794, Montague Gardens, Cape Town, situate at 14 – 16 Track Crescent, Cape Town, in extent 6 856 square metres;
•  Erf 21, Riverside Industrial Park Township Registration Division JT, situate at 15 Waterfall Avenue, Riverside Industrial Park, Nelspruit, in 

extent 4 687 square metres;
• Erf 115 Waterval East Extension 4, Rustenburg, situate at 10 Kgwebo Street, Mabe Business Park, in extent 2 856 square metres.
• Erf 849 and 850, Zwartkop Extension 4, situate at 11 Larch Close, Centurion, in extent 1 226 and 1 004 square metres respectively;
• Erf 772, Gezina, situate at 600 Frederika Street, Gezina, in extent 5 104 square metres;
• Erf 466, Wolmer, situate at 745 President Steyn Street, Pretoria North, in extent 2 552 square metres; and
• Portion 1 of Erf 1827, Pretoria West, situate at 154 Soutter Street, Pretoria West, in extent 1 249 square metres.
• Lot 119 Reuven Extension 1, situated at 25/27 Andrea Road, Reuven, Johannesburg, in extent 4 649 square metres.

The fair value of properties is determined every three years and updated annually by an independent professionally qualified valuator,  
Glen MacMillan (MIVSA; SACV No 2964). In determining the valuations at 30 June 2014, the valuator referred to current market conditions, 
recent sales transactions of similar properties in similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income expected to 
be earned in respect of the properties in their current condition. The cash flows were estimated based on external evidence of current 
rentals for similar properties in similar locations. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the property is 
their current use. There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year. The fair value hierarchy of investment property 
has been determined to be a level 2 input.

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying
 value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

4. Property, plant and equipment
Group
Land and buildings 163 230 732 – 163 230 732 154 924 531 – 154 924 531
Plant and equipment 21 625 238 14 196 084 7 429 154 20 182 885 12 531 879 7 651 006
Vehicles 40 338 024 12 377 845 27 960 179 38 339 321 14 515 894 23 823 427
Office furniture and fittings 9 118 604 6 596 662 2 521 942 8 176 714 5 731 741 2 444 973
Leasehold improvements 1 962 482 1 048 016 914 466 1 777 465 839 231 938 234
Office equipment 4 580 855 3 110 829 1 470 026 3 604 897 2 681 947 922 950
Computer equipment 9 532 136 7 532 894 1 999 242 9 634 701 6 718 700 2 916 001

250 388 071 44 862 330 205 525 741 236 640 514 43 019 392 193 621 122
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying 
value at the 

beginning 
of the year Additions Revaluation Disposals Depreciation

Carrying
value 

at the end 
of the year

2014
Land and buildings 154 924 531 9 805 592 (1 347 708) (151 683) – 163 230 732
Plant and equipment 7 651 006 2 393 379 – – (2 615 231) 7 429 154
Vehicles 23 823 427 12 391 254 – (3 669 098) (4 585 404) 27 960 179
Office furniture and fittings 2 444 973 1 497 777 – (165 786) (1 255 022) 2 521 942
Leasehold improvements 938 234 622 096 – – (645 864) 914 466
Office equipment 922 950 1 010 826 – – (463 750) 1 470 026
Computer equipment 2 916 001 1 046 603 – (32 656) (1 930 706) 1 999 242

193 621 122 28 767 527 (1 347 708) (4 019 223) (11 495 977) 205 525 741

2013
Land and buildings 136 702 259 11 661 286 8 657 662 (2 096 676) – 154 924 531
Plant and equipment 5 422 355 3 959 402 – (158 906) (1 571 845) 7 651 006
Vehicles 15 722 715 13 062 200 – (2 022 406) (2 939 082) 23 823 427
Office furniture and fittings 1 814 155 1 782 952 – (14 485) (1 137 649) 2 444 973
Leasehold improvements 638 713 511 901 – – (212 380) 938 234
Office equipment 1 033 596 294 771 – (1 376) (404 041) 922 950
Computer equipment 1 537 466 3 115 046 – (11 918) (1 724 593) 2 916 001

162 871 259 34 387 558 8 657 662 (4 305 767) (7 989 590) 193 621 122

Land and buildings
Described as:
• Sub 20 of Lot 1543, Isipingo, situate at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, in extent 23 500 square metres;
•  Remainder of Erf 3461, Durban North, Registration Division FU, situate at 1461 North Coast Road, Durban North, in extent 4 171 square 

metres;
• Sub 12 of Lot 2131, Pietermaritzburg, situate at 307 Boom Street, Pietermaritzburg, in extent 3 528 square metres;
• Erf 7704, Richards Bay (extension 24), situate at 63 Dollar Drive, Richards Bay, in extent 4 210 square metres;
• Erf 19168, East London, situate at 27 Rayon Road, East London, in extent 3 610 square metres;
• Lot 322, Alrode Extension 2, Johannesburg, situate at 8 Bosworth Street, Johannesburg, in extent 13 220 square metres;
• Erf 6794, Montague Gardens, Cape Town, situate at 14 – 16 Track Crescent, Cape Town, in extent 6 856 square metres;
•  Erf 21, Riverside Industrial Park Township Registration Division JT, situate at 15 Waterfall Avenue, Riverside Industrial Park, Nelspruit, in 

extent 4 687 square metres;
• Erf 115 Waterval East Extension 4, Rustenburg, situate at 10 Kgwebo Street, Mabe Business Park, in extent 2 856 square metres.
• Erf 849 and 850, Zwartkop Extension 4, situate at 11 Larch Close, Centurion, in extent 1 226 and 1 004 square metres respectively;
• Erf 772, Gezina, situate at 600 Frederika Street, Gezina, in extent 5 104 square metres;
• Erf 466, Wolmer, situate at 745 President Steyn Street, Pretoria North, in extent 2 552 square metres; and
• Portion 1 of Erf 1827, Pretoria West, situate at 154 Soutter Street, Pretoria West, in extent 1 249 square metres.
• Lot 119 Reuven Extension 1, situated at 25/27 Andrea Road, Reuven, Johannesburg, in extent 4 649 square metres.

The fair value of properties is determined every three years and updated annually by an independent professionally qualified valuator,  
Glen MacMillan (MIVS; SACV No 2964). In determining the valuations at 30 June 2014, the valuator referred to current market conditions, 
recent sales transactions of similar properties in similar geographical locations and the present value of future rental income expected to 
be earned in respect of the properties in their current condition. The cash flows were estimated based on external evidence of current 
rentals for similar properties in similar locations. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the property is 
their current use. There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year. The fair value hierarchy of land and buildings 
has been determined to be a level 2 input.

If the cost model had been applied, the carrying value of land and buildings would have been R86 416 994 (2013: R70 194 736).
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Included in additions in the prior year are the following which were acquired as part of the significant business combinations effected:

Figures in Rand 2013

Land and buildings 6 416 666
Plant and equipment 1 056 320
Vehicles 2 443 827
Office furniture and fittings 299 781
Office equipment 31 516
Computer equipment 539 424

10 787 534

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying
 value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Company
Plant and equipment 4 207 066 2 533 475 1 673 591 4 165 103 2 276 480 1 888 623
Vehicles 12 594 672 6 570 481 6 024 191 19 774 561 9 818 720 9 955 841

16 801 738 9 103 956 7 697 782 23 939 664 12 095 200 11 844 464

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying value 
at the beginning 

of the year Additions Disposals Depreciation

Carrying 
value at the 

end of the year

2014
Plant and equipment 1 888 623 41 963 – (256 995) 1 673 591
Vehicles 9 955 841 – (2 675 869) (1 255 781) 6 024 191

11 844 464 41 963 (2 675 869) (1 512 776) 7 697 782

2013
Plant and equipment 1 924 164 260 294 (4 001) (291 834) 1 888 623
Vehicles 13 728 091 – (1 892 385) (1 879 865) 9 955 841

15 652 255 260 294 (1 896 386) (2 171 699) 11 844 464

2014 2013

Figures in Rand Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

5. Intangible assets
Group
Goodwill 23 909 955 – 23 909 955 23 909 955 – 23 909 955
Trademark – Horizon brand 440 000 (440 000) – 440 000 – 440 000
Software development costs 1 561 057 – 1 561 057 1 561 057 – 1 561 057
Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – 58 500 000 58 500 000 – 58 500 000

84 411 012 (440 000) 83 971 012 84 411 012 – 84 411 012
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

5. Intangible assets (continued)
The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in Rand

Carrying value 
at the beginning 

of the year Additions Amortisation

Carrying value 
at the end of 

the year

2014

Goodwill 23 909 955 – – 23 909 955

Trademark – Horizon brand 440 000 – (440 000) –

Software development costs 1 561 057 – – 1 561 057

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – – 58 500 000

84 411 012 – (440 000) 83 971 012

2013

Goodwill 18 409 954 5 500 001 – 23 909 955

Trademark – Horizon brand – 440 000 – 440 000

Software development costs 1 561 057 – – 1 561 057

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 000 – – 58 500 000

78 471 011 5 940 001 – 84 411 012

Intangible assets have been valued as stated in notes 2.1 and 2.4.

Software development costs capitalised have been brought into use. Impairment tests were conducted on the carrying value based on 
forecast cash flows and no impairment was considered necessary.

Impairment tests relating to the Eurolux trademark and goodwill were conducted. Management has based their assumptions on past 
experience which is detailed in note 2.1. The Eurolux trademark is believed to have an indefinite useful life as the brand is increasing its 
market share and there is no forseeable limit to the period that this brand will be generating economic benefits for the Group.

Management has calculated its cash flow and revenue projection over a five-year period. Revenue after the five-year period has been 
extrapolated based on estimated growth rates disclosed below. These growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the 
industry or market in which the Group operates. Other key assumptions used in the projection are as follows:

Electrical Lighting Corporate

Growth rates
– 1 to 5 years 10% 10% 10%
– 5 years and beyond – 4% –
Discount rates 20% 20% 20%

Management has based their assumptions on past experience and external sources of information, such as industry sector reports and 
market expectations.

The Horizon trade name was acquired in June 2013 and has been brought into use and amortised in the current year. The carrying amount 
of goodwill allocated to each reportable segment is as follows:

Figures in Rand Electrical Lighting Corporate Total

2014
Goodwill 5 500 001 18 409 954 – 23 909 955
Software development costs – – 1 561 057 1 561 057
Trademark – 58 500 000 – 58 500 000

5 500 001 76 909 954 1 561 057 83 971 012

2013
Goodwill 5 500 001 18 409 954 – 23 909 955
Software development costs – – 1 561 057 1 561 057
Trademark 440 000 58 500 000 – 58 940 000

5 940 001 76 909 954 1 561 057 84 411 012
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

6. Investment in subsidiaries
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 7 400 7 400
7 400 ordinary shares of R1 each
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 100 100
100 ordinary shares of R1 each
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 100 100
100 ordinary shares of R1 each
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 78 000 000 78 000 000
1 140 ordinary shares
CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – at cost – – 120 120
120 ordinary shares of no par value

– – 78 007 720 78 007 720

Set out below is the summarised information in respect of each subsidiary with material non-controlling interest. The subsidiaries are 
incorporated in, and their principal place of operation is, South Africa. The summarised information below is presented before intercompany 
eliminations and adjustments on consolidation:

ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

% of interest and voting rights held by non-controlling interest 26 26 40 40
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interest 26 110 451 20 474 126 10 272 872 8 076 545
Accumulated non-controlling interests at the end  
of the reporting period 143 366 648 124 016 197 39 624 058 31 991 186
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest 6 760 000 6 500 000 2 640 000 –
Total revenue 1 841 112 290 1 661 583 495 350 815 274 281 176 507
Profit for the year 100 424 845 78 746 639 25 682 177 20 159 023
Total assets 801 138 337 714 689 412 183 788 137 153 526 909
Total liabilities 249 728 152 237 704 063 84 727 979 72 467 419
Net cash from operating activities 34 953 492 101 755 789 3 183 719 (1 532 223)

Refer to note 10 to the Directors' report for the issued share capital, percentage held and number of shares held of each subsidiary.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

7. Inventory
Merchandise for resale 404 084 131 353 475 483 – –
Allowance for impairment (12 735 764) (11 811 403) – –

391 348 367 341 664 080 – –

Inventory has been valued as stated in note 2.8.
Impairment allowance
Allowance for impairment in respect of inventory can be 
reconciled as follows:
Opening balance 11 811 403 10 692 158 – –
Impairment recognised in profit and loss 924 361 1 119 245 – –

Closing balance 12 735 764 11 811 403 – –

The following factors were considered in determining the amount of the impairment of inventory: 
• Historic sales trends
• Merchandise for resale on hand at reporting date which will not be sold, or will be sold below cost.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

8. Deferred lease income
Arising on the straight-lining of income earned  
under operating leases:
– Current portion – – – 3 193 226

Net deferred lease income – – – 3 193 226

9. Trade and other receivables
Gross trade receivables 338 886 668 309 587 802 – –
Other receivables 3 284 151 5 878 022 – –
Prepayments 2 679 409 1 669 167 10 515 342 883
Deposits 581 256 455 307 – –
VAT refundable 3 699 366 3 011 388 – –

349 130 850 320 601 686 10 515 342 883
Allowance for impairment (7 207 180) (8 922 645) – –

341 923 670 311 679 041 10 515 342 883

The carrying value of trade and other receivables  
approximated their fair value due to the short-term  
nature of these instruments.
Impairment allowance
Allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables  
can be reconciled as follows:
Opening balance 8 922 645 8 111 023 – –
Provision utilised (5 003 361) (1 384 989) – –
Reversal of provisions (3 833 273) (5 918 468) – –
New provisions raised 7 121 169 8 115 079 – –

Closing balance 7 207 180 8 922 645 – –

The following table illustrates the relationship between aged gross trade receivables and the impairment allowance:

Group

 2014 2013

Figures in Rand
Gross trade 
receivables

Impairment 
allowance

Gross trade 
receivables

Impairment 
allowance

Not past due 285 785 719 1 152 821 261 673 673 237 187
Past due 0 to 30 days 29 790 431 1 514 292 25 186 906 365 578
Past due 30 to 60 days 10 621 375 1 330 482 9 282 090 929 959
Past due 60 days + 12 689 143 3 209 585 13 445 133 7 389 921

338 886 668 7 207 180 309 587 802 8 922 645

The following factors were considered in determining  
the amount of the impairment of trade receivables:  
Financial difficulties
Abscondences
Disputes
Exposure to credit risk
Gross trade receivables represent the
maximum credit exposure 338 886 668 309 587 802
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued)
The gross trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was spread across the following categories: 
• Government/parastatals/municipalities
• Large industry/mining sector
• Large contractors
• Small contractors
• Wholesalers
• Export customers
• Retail and hardware chains

The group's trade receivable balances with government, retail and hardware chains, parastatals, municipalities, large industry, the mining 
sector and large contractors, reduces the Group's exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk in respect of small contractors and wholesalers is controlled through the use of credit vetting agencies and the setting and 
monitoring of credit limits by senior financial management.

Credit risk in respect of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd's and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd's export customers is reduced through the use  
of credit insurance, whereas Eurolux (Pty) Ltd and CED-Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd maintain credit insurance in respect of 
all customers.

The credit risk in respect of other receivables is considered by the Directors to be minimal as it relates to transactions with major corporations 
within the Republic of South Africa.

Credit evaluations are performed using the reports and tools of credit vetting agencies, amongst other things, on new customers and 
existing customers requiring credit above their previously authorised levels. Listings of overdue customer balances are reviewed daily and 
any customer exceeding their credit terms must settle their overdue balance before any further credit is extended. Overdue trade receivables 
are handed over to attorneys for collection as soon as it becomes apparent that recovery may be uncertain.

The Group has an overdraft facility in terms of which certain subsidiaries have ceded their book debts in favour of Nedbank Ltd as security 
for this facility. This facility was utilised at 30 June 2014 to the value of R79 (2013: R37 448).

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and  
balances with banks and investment managers. Cash and cash 
equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise  
the following statement of financial position amounts:
Favourable cash balances
Cash on hand 147 396 238 969 1 000 1 000
Bank balances 197 436 163 202 551 371 545 518 60 848 521

197 583 559 202 790 340 546 518 60 849 521

Overdraft
Bank overdraft (79) (37 448) – –

(79) (37 448) – –

197 583 480 202 752 892 546 518 60 849 521

11. Share capital
Authorised
1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each 100 000 100 000 100 000 100 000

Issued
235 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each 23 500 23 500 23 500 23 500

The Directors are authorised, until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to issue and allot 10% of the unissued shares for any purpose 
and upon such terms and conditions as they deem fit.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

 for the year ended 30 June 2014

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

12. Capital reserve
The capital reserve is the profit arising from the sale of  
the operations of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd in  
2004 to a subsidiary in terms of a Broad-Based Black  
Economic Empowerment transaction. – – 26 234 082 26 234 082 

13. Vendor – loan account
Fredcor Trust 18 466 2 259 274 – –

This loan represents amounts payable to the previous shareholder of Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd.

14. Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
It is the policy of the Group to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A number of defined contribution provident and pension funds, 
all of which are governed by the Pensions Fund Act of 1956, exist for this purpose. These include the Alexander Forbes Retirement Fund, 
Investment Solutions, Liberty Corporate Provident Fund and Momentum Funds at Work. All the schemes are funded by Group contributions, 
which are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they are incurred. The total Group contribution to such schemes in 2014 
was R10 428 776 (2013: R9 633 401) and for the Company was R408 862 (2013: R358 283).

Share appreciation rights
The Directors elected to introduce a Share Appreciation Rights ("SAR") Plan in previous years. These plans are 100% cash-settled and no 
shares will be subscribed for or alloted in terms hereof.

The details of the SAR's granted for each plan are detailed below:

Plan 3 Plan 2 Plan 1
Number of SARs Number of SARs Number of SARs

Group Company Group Company Group Company

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 385 000 2 100 000 1 158 400 160 000 2 784 000 600 000
Current year transactions
– exercised (2 161 000) (508 000) (289 600) (40 000) (928 000) (200 000)
– granted 770 000 440 000 – – – –
– forfeited/declined (350 000) – – – – –

Outstanding at the end of the year 8 644 000 2 032 000 868 800 120 000 1 856 000 400 000

The fair value was calculated using the Black Scholes Pricing Market Model. The assumptions used in determining fair value of each SAR 
granted are summarised below:

Estimated fair value
Share price R6,50 R6,50 R6,50
Grant price R4,72 R3,84 R3,11
Expected SAR life 5 years 5 years 5 years

The risk-free rate of 7,80% has been assumed, based on the prevailing return on a five-year government retail bond as at 1 March 2014.

The volatility of 30% was determined based on the historical volatility of the company's share price over the previous year. The dividend yield 
of 2.99% is based on the dividends paid over the previous year.

The share price of R6,50 is the determined 30 day VWAP of ARB Holdings shares for June 2014.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Exercised and accrued 3 378 600 1 315 600 748 000 240 000
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

15. Deferred taxation
Balance at the beginning of the year (26 033 993) (34 201 486) (17 268 807) (15 934 834)
Movements during the year attributable to:
Investment properties – – (638 659) (2 047 046)
Doubtful debt allowance (360 249) 170 441 – –
Leave pay and bonus accrual 1 330 416 495 472 48 482 (3 051)
Incentive accrual 1 509 326 – 638 400 –
Inventory obsolescence allowance 34 579 188 381 – –
Property, plant and equipment 740 340 3 394 362 425 033 200 740
Intangible assets (2 873) (5 670) – –
Prepayments 79 521 (626 416) – –
Assessed loss (271 126) 4 653 368 – –
Provision for credit notes 117 100 86 340 – –
Lease smoothing effect (110 975) (1 195 184) 894 103 385 195
Interest accrual 190 173 445 028 – –
Share appreciation rights 1 838 771 561 371 342 630 130 189

Balance at the end of the year (20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

The balance comprises:
Investment properties – – (15 308 404) (14 669 745)

– Revaluation of investment properties – – (14 338 564) (13 994 068)
– Building allowance – – (969 840) (675 677) 

Doubtful debt allowance 1 513 507 1 873 756 – –
Leave pay and bonus accrual 3 345 108 2 014 692 109 621 61 139
Incentive accrual 1 509 326 – 638 400 –
Inventory obsolescence allowance 1 346 904 1 312 325 – –
Assessed loss 4 517 737 4 788 863 – –
Provision for credit notes 550 944 433 844 – –
Lease smoothing effect 114 184 225 159 – (894 103)
Interest accrual 839 185 649 012 – –
Property, plant and equipment (19 641 588) (20 381 928) (1 471 254) (1 896 287)
Intangible assets (16 817 096) (16 814 223) – –
Prepayments (617 343) (696 864) – –
Share appreciation rights 2 400 142 561 371 472 819 130 189

 (20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

Deferred tax liability (34 127 052) (37 893 015) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)
Deferred tax asset 13 188 062 11 859 022 – –

(20 938 990) (26 033 993) (15 558 818) (17 268 807)

16. Trade and other payables
Accruals 7 330 144 8 959 681 361 473 1 671 227
Payroll accruals 12 564 213 5 033 070 3 547 975 –
Share appreciation rights 8 571 936 2 004 896 1 688 640 464 961
Leave pay and bonus accrual 9 666 813 5 853 797 391 505 218 356
Rental deposits – – – 54 088
Trade payables 240 670 204 250 668 854 – 753
VAT payable 4 879 344 1 517 616 786 457 465 899
Other payables 435 270 1 007 195 231 771 121 104

284 117 924 275 045 109 7 007 821 2 996 388

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximated their fair value due to the short-term nature of these obligations.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

17. Loans receivable/(payable)
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – – 7 500 961 8 517 909
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – – 674 058 (1 644 888)
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – – 38 081 595 38 185 565
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – – (200 028) (3 838 932)
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – – 26 445 520 (13 686 207)

– – 72 502 106 27 533 447

Current assets – – 72 702 134 46 703 474
Current liabilities – – (200 028) (19 170 027)

– – 72 502 106 27 533 447

The intercompany loans are unsecured, bear interest at 
rates linked to prime and have no fixed terms of repayment. 
These loans are neither past due nor impaired.

18. Deferred lease payments
Arising on the straight-lining of payments made under 
operating leases:
Long-term portion – – – –
Current portion 440 201 836 541 – –

Net deferred lease payments 440 201 836 541 – –

19. Profit before interest and taxation
Profit before interest and taxation is arrived at after  
taking into account the following items:
Income
Lease rentals 622 090 677 657 27 986 940 28 853 444
Fair value adjustment to investment properties – – 1 845 518 10 033 358
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 57 874 32 296 – 85 034
Exchange rate profits on foreign exchange 5 634 835 19 158 – –
Bargain purchase price – 2 928 092 – –
Expenditure
Exchange rate losses on foreign exchange 3 814 300 3 917 844 – –
Depreciation 11 495 976 7 989 590 1 512 776 2 171 699
Auditors' remuneration
– audit fees 1 189 705 1 081 500 412 050 277 000
– other services – 141 437 – 29 524
Operating lease charges
– Premises 14 347 096 14 795 385 942 924 610 536
Allowance for impairment – inventory 924 361 1 119 245 – –
Allowance for impairment – trade receivables (1 715 465) 811 622 – –
Share appreciation rights 11 189 309 3 729 211 2 411 159 822 161
Loss on sale on investment property – – – 36 676
Direct operating expenses of investment property
– that generated rental income – – 951 883 587 472
– that did not generate rental income – – 31 879 66 830

20. Staff costs
Short-term employee benefits 133 480 815 98 961 335 993 694 988 468
Contributions to retirement funds 10 050 665 9 314 780 30 751 39 662
Other employment benefits 9 855 805 5 785 754 348 648 141 969
Other staff costs 10 406 289 10 501 284 3 503 679 252 162

163 793 574 124 563 153 4 876 772 1 422 261
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20. Staff costs (continued)
Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, commissions, share appreciation rights and bonuses paid.

Other employment benefits comprise travel allowances, fringe benefits on the use of Company vehicles and contributions to medical  
aid funds.

Other staff costs comprise accruals raised but not paid in respect of the future liability for share appreciation rights and other bonuses,  
as well as staff training and related expenditure.

Group

2014 2013

Number Number

Average number of persons employed by the Group during the year: 886 754

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

21. Interest received
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – – 3 672 762 2 460 836
CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – – 758 354 73 380
South African Revenue Services 11 905 48 222 – –
Financial institutions and trade receivables 11 430 305 10 369 948 2 270 362 3 122 383

11 442 210 10 418 170 6 701 478 5 656 599

22. Interest paid
Financial institutions 188 940 959 831 – –
South African Revenue Services 376 11 248 – –
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – – 204 752 109 935
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – – 1 760 449 602 442
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd – – – 73 400

189 316 971 079 1 965 201 785 777

23. Taxation
SA normal tax
– Current taxation 63 962 738 44 862 522 10 126 590 9 114 737
– Prior year overprovision (44 356) – – –
Deferred taxation
– Current year temporary differences (4 219 485) 1 440 675 (1 709 989) 1 333 972
– Prior year underprovision 9 353 (60 905) – –

Tax for the year 59 708 250 46 242 292 8 416 601 10 448 709

Reconciliation of rate of taxation % % % %

South African normal taxation rate 28.00 28.00 28.00 28.00
Adjusted for:
Special allowances (0.21) (0.83) 0.00 0.00
Exempt income 0.00 0.00 (14.12) (8.76)
Non-deductible expenses 0.09 0.08 0.00 0.03
Prior year overprovision (0.02) (0.04) 0.00 0.00
Revaluation of investment properties at CGT rate 0.00 0.00 (0.28) (1.59)

Net reduction (0.14) (0.79) (14.40) (10.32)
Effective rate of taxation 27.86 27.21 13.60 17.68

In one of the subsidiaries, the taxation charge in the current year has been reduced by R968 307 as a result of a portion of a taxation loss 
utilised. The value of the unutilised taxation loss amounts to R16 134 775.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

24. Directors' emoluments
Emoluments received
Salary 3 781 113 3 157 856 3 781 113 3 157 856
Directors' fees 1 502 000 1 095 000 1 502 000 1 095 000
Contributions to retirement funds 378 111 318 621 378 111 318 621
Other employment benefits 340 776 348 515 340 776 348 515
Share appreciation rights and incentives 1 700 480 357 200 1 700 480 357 200

Total emoluments received 7 702 480 5 277 192 7 702 480 5 277 192

Figures in Rand Salary
Directors' 

fees

Contri-
butions to

retirement 
funds

Share 
appreciation 

rights and 
incentives

Other 
employment 

benefits Total

Received as follows:
Group
2014
Executive Directors
B Nichles 2 179 098 – 217 910 1 173 080 202 992 3 773 080
WR Neasham 1 602 015 – 160 201 527 400 137 784 2 427 400
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 390 000 – – – 390 000
ST Downes – 333 000 – – – 333 000
JR Modise – 168 000 – – – 168 000
G Pretorius – 298 000 – – – 298 000
RB Patmore – 313 000 – – – 313 000

3 781 113 1 502 000 378 111 1 700 480 340 776 7 702 480

2013
Executive Directors
B Nichles 1 806 280 – 182 250 357 200 195 246 2 540 976
WR Neasham 1 351 576 – 136 371 – 153 269 1 641 216
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 330 000 – – – 330 000
ST Downes – 235 000 – – – 235 000
JR Modise – 110 000 – – – 110 000
G Pretorius – 185 000 – – – 185 000
RB Patmore – 235 000 – – – 235 000

3 157 856 1 095 000 318 621 357 200 348 515 5 277 192

Company
2014
Executive Directors
B Nichles 2 179 098 – 217 910 1 173 080 202 992 3 773 080
WR Neasham 1 602 015 – 160 201 527 400 137 784 2 427 400
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 390 000 – – – 390 000
ST Downes – 333 000 – – – 333 000
JR Modise – 168 000 – – – 168 000
G Pretorius – 298 000 – – – 298 000
RB Patmore – 313 000 – – – 313 000 

3 781 113 1 502 000 378 111 1 700 480 340 776 7 702 480
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Figures in Rand Salary
Directors' 

fees

Contri-
butions to

retirement 
funds

Share 
appreciation 

rights and 
incentives

Other 
employment 

benefits Total

24. Directors' emoluments 
(continued)
2013
Executive Directors
B Nichles 1 806 280 – 182 250 357 200 195 246 2 540 976
WR Neasham 1 351 576 – 136 371 – 153 269 1 641 216
Non-Executive Directors
AR Burke – 330 000 – – – 330 000
ST Downes – 235 000 – – – 235 000
JR Modise – 110 000 – – – 110 000
G Pretorius – 185 000 – – – 185 000
RB Patmore – 235 000 – – – 235 000

3 157 856 1 095 000 318 621 357 200 348 515  5 277 192

Group

Figures in Rand 2014 2013

25. Earnings and dividends per share
25.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings as disclosed 118 190 892 95 129 623
Weighted number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000
Diluted number of shares 235 000 000 235 340 000
Basic earnings per share (cents) 50,29 40,48
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 50,29 40,42

25.2 Headline and diluted headline earnings per share
Basic earnings as disclosed 118 190 892 95 129 623
Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net of taxation) (41 669) (23 253)
Bargain purchase price – (2 928 092)
Minority interest therein 10 834 757 611

Headline earnings 118 160 057 92 935 889

Headline earnings per share (cents) 50,28 39,55
Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 50,28 39,49

25.3 Reconciliation of weighted and diluted 
number of shares
Issued shares at the beginning of the year 235 000 000 235 000 000

Weighted average number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000
Dilutive effect of share options – 340 000

Diluted number of shares 235 000 000 235 340 000

There is no dilutive effect of share options in the current year as all the remaining  

share options were cash settled in December 2013 at a cost of R792 000 which  

has been charged to comprehensive income.

25.4 Dividends per share
Dividends declared during the year 61 570 000 32 195 000
Number of shares 235 000 000 235 000 000

Dividends per share (cents) 26,20 13,70

The final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2014 which was only declared after year-end has not been included as a liability in the 
financial statements.
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 for the year ended 30 June 2014

26. Significant business combinations during the previous year
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd
On 1 July 2012, the Company's subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Industrial Cable 
Suppliers (Pty) Ltd. Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd is engaged in electrical wholesaling and operates principally in South Africa with 
branches in Johannesburg and Rustenburg.

The revenue and profit before taxation of Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd, included in the Group statement of comprehensive income in 
the prior year was R181 496 954 and R4 876 251, respectively.

Group

Figures in Rand 2014 2013

The acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and  
liabilities assumed and the consideration transferred, were:
Property, plant and equipment – 9 767 504
Inventory – 67 835 570
Trade and other receivables – 44 734 882
Deferred taxation – 2 456 119
Trade and other payables – (48 618 885)
Taxation payable – (1 876 752)
Cash and cash equivalents – (20 983 904)
Interest-bearing borrowings – (14 395 129)

– 38 919 405
Bargain purchase price – (2 928 092)

Total consideration transferred in cash – 35 991 313

Cash paid on acquisition
– purchase price – 35 991 313
– cash and cash equivalents refinanced – 20 983 904

– 56 975 217

Acquisition-related costs
Due diligence – 126 369
Legal costs – 27 055
Press announcements – 102 650
Competition Commission filing fee – 50 000

– 306 074

A gain of R2 928 092 on acquisition was recognised. The gain resulted from the fair value of inventory and trade receivables being determined 
at acquisition date compared to the agreed values on negotiation which led to a lower purchase price being negotiated. The gain was 
included in other income in profit or loss in the prior year.

Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd
On 1 January 2013, the Company's subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Elektro 
Vroomen (Pty) Ltd. Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd is engaged in electrical wholesaling and operates principally in South Africa with branches in 
Bloemfontein and Kathu.

The revenue and profit before taxation of Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd, included in the Group statement of comprehensive income in the prior 
year was R16 385 484 and R378 197, respectively. If Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd was included from the beginning of their financial year, the 
revenue would have been R32 770 968 and the loss before interest and taxation would have been R756 394.
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Group

Figures in Rand 2014 2013

26. Significant business combinations during the previous year (continued)
The acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
and the consideration transferred, were:
Property, plant and equipment – 1 020 030
Inventory – 3 661 178
Trade and other receivables – 2 246 026
Deferred taxation – 4 820 800
Trade and other payables – (11 235 580)
Cash and cash equivalents – (2 666 607)
Shareholder loans – (3 276 587)
Long-term borrowings – (69 260)

– (5 500 000)
Goodwill – 5 500 001

Total consideration transferred in cash – 1

Cash paid on acquisition
– purchase price – 1
– cash and cash equivalents refinanced – 2 666 607

– 2 666 608

Acquisition-related costs
Due diligence – 65 000
Legal costs – 20 730
Press announcements – 25 022

– 110 752

27. Related party transactions
The subsidiaries of the Group are identified in note 10 to the Directors' report. All of these entities are related parties to the Company.
Details of material transactions with related parties are disclosed below and also as follows:
Interest received Note 21
Interest paid Note 22
Directors' emoluments Note 24
Investments in subsidiaries Note 6
Loans receivable from subsidiaries Note 17
Loans payable to subsidiaries Note 17
Directors' shareholding Note 12 to the Directors' report

Figures in Rand
Relationship 
to Company Nature of business 2014 2013

Other transactions not disclosed 
elsewhere
Rentals paid to ARB Holdings Ltd by
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 746 325 270 400
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 29 288 719 28 851 886
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 296 499 367 939
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 67 947 –
CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

61 037 –

Rentals paid to ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd by
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 32 000 –
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Figures in Rand
Relationship 
to Company Nature of business 2014 2013

27. Related party transactions 
(continued)
Rentals paid by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to
Riverport Investments (Pty) Ltd Common shareholders Property owning 5 804 473 5 374 512
Rapiprop 110 (Pty) Ltd Common shareholders Property owning 4 738 197 4 387 218
Purchases made by ARB IT  
Solutions (Pty) Ltd from
Protime Computer Systems cc Common Director/

member
IT service provider 89 000 96 000

Purchases made by ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd from
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 5 071 369 5 089 781
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
30 330 946 1 223 713

Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 17 878 755 19 507 561
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 5 393 566 2 392 540
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
10 582 108 9 569 824

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

4 650 108 678 614

Sales made by ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd to
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 1 086 2 609
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 39 651 459 54 001 316
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 24 173 666 6 086 371
The Burke Investment Trust Shareholder Investment trust 97 324 1 358 537
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
24 290 35 120

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

104 073 34 979

ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

10 478 617 –

Management fee paid to  
ARB Holdings Ltd by
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 12 273 705 7 689 863
ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary IT service provider 180 000 180 000
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
60 000 60 000

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 
wholesaler

540 600 510 000

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

180 000 –

Management fee paid to ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd by
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 360 000 –
Sales made by ARB Global (Pty) Ltd to
CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

4 862 349 5 527 474

Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 12 451 –
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Figures in Rand
Relationship 
to Company Nature of business 2014 2013

27. Related party transactions 
(continued)
Sales made by ARB IT  
Solutions (Pty) Ltd to
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import electrical 

wholesaler
1 295 1 830

CED – Consolidated Electrical  
Distributor (Pty) Ltd

Subsidiary Export/import electrical 
wholesaler

213 987 26 855

Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 252 380 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 603 448 –
Sales made by CED – Consolidated 
Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 000 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 54 620 –
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Export/import lighting 

wholesaler
20 402 –

Sales made by Elektro Vroomen  
(Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 47 204 –
Sales made by Industrial Cable  
Suppliers (Pty) Ltd to
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 246 154 –
Purchases made by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd from
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 000 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 4 307 –
Sales made by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to
Industrial Cable Suppliers (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 135 805 –
Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Electrical wholesaler 601 242 –

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
Group, directly and indirectly, and include Directors of the subsidiaries, Divisional Directors, Regional Managers, Branch Managers and 
Department Managers.

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Short-term employment benefits 26 273 706 20 919 762 – –
Contributions to retirement funds 2 299 277 1 765 219 – –
Other employment benefits 2 846 336 2 412 636 – –

31 419 319 25 097 617 – –

Short-term employment benefits comprise salaries, commission and bonuses paid.

Other employment benefits comprise travel allowances, fringe benefits on the use of the Company's vehicles and contributions to medical  
aid funds.

Information regarding the earnings of Directors, Executive and Non-Executive, have been disclosed separately in note 24.
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 Figures in Rand
Non-financial 

instruments
Loans and 

receivables
Liabilities at 

amortised cost
Carrying

 value

28. Financial risk management
Classification of financial instruments
Group
Assets
2014
Trade and other receivables 3 699 366 338 224 304 – 341 923 670
Cash and cash equivalents – 197 583 559 – 197 583 559

2013
Trade and other receivables 3 011 388 308 667 653 – 311 679 041
Cash and cash equivalents – 202 790 340 – 202 790 340

Liabilities
2014
Trade and other payables 23 118 093 – 260 999 831 284 117 924
Vendor loan account – – 18 466 18 466
Deferred lease payments – – 440 201 440 201
Bank overdraft – – 79 79

2013
Trade and other payables 9 376 309 – 265 668 800 275 045 109
Bank overdraft – – 37 448 37 448
Vendor loan account – – 2 259 274 2 259 274
Deferred lease payment – – 836 541 836 541

Company
Assets
2014
Loan receivable – 72 702 134 – 72 702 134
Trade and other receivables – 10 515 – 10 515
Cash and cash equivalents – 546 518 – 546 518

2013
Deferred lease income – 3 193 226 – 3 193 226
Loans receivable – 46 703 474 – 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables – 342 883 – 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents – 60 849 521 – 60 849 521

Liabilities
2014
Trade and other payables 2 866 602 – 4 141 219 7 007 821
Loans payable – – 200 028 200 028

2013
Trade and other payables 1 149 216 – 1 847 172 2 996 388
Loans payable – – 19 170 027 19 170 027



// 83 ARB Integrated report 2014

28. Financial risk management (continued)
The Group's operations expose it to a number of financial risks, namely credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange and commodity price 
risk. The Group has financial risk management processes in place to protect against and minimise the potential adverse effects of these 
financial risks. This note presents information regarding the exposure to each of these risks and processes for managing them.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and 
arises principally from the Group's gross trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents held at banking institutions.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties and it is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit 
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result 
that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group also believes that it has no significant exposure to credit risk due to the 
large number of customers comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical 
areas. Credit risk in respect of ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd's and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd's export customers is reduced through the 
use of credit insurance, whereas Eurolux (Pty) Ltd and CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd maintain credit insurance in 
respect of all their customers. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 9.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the 
counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

To limit this exposure, the Group's cash is placed only with reputable financial institutions of high credit standing and limits its exposure to 
only four counter-parties.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group ensures, as far as possible, that it has sufficient liquidity available to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. Daily and 
monthly cash flow requirements are monitored to ensure sufficient cash is available on demand or that access to facilities is available to 
meet expected operational expenses. Any surplus cash is appropriately invested. The Group maintains a balance between continuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of bank facilities and intercompany funding.

In addition, the subsidiaries have primary and secondary banking facilities of R107 000 000 and R70 000 000 respectively available to finance 
any working capital requirements.

In terms of the Company's Memorandum of Incorporation, there is no limit on the group's authority to raise interest-bearing debt.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rate will affect the Group's income or value of its financial instruments, namely its 
cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate primarily to the borrowing obligations and loans receivable 
within the Group, with a variable interest rate. As part of the process of managing the Group's interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics 
of new borrowings and the refinancing of existing borrowings are positioned according to expected movement in the interest rate. Full 
details of interest rates relating to borrowings and loans receivable are detailed in notes 10 and 17.

Surplus cash and cash equivalents exposed to interest rate risk are placed with institutions and facilities which yield the highest rate of 
return, but which are still within acceptable risk parameters.

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in the interest rates.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

28. Financial risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis 
Net loans payable
Increase of 100 basis points would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of – (18 885) – –
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in an
improvement of profit before tax of – 37 769 – –

Net loans receivable
Increase of 100 basis points would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of – – 725 021 275 334
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of – – (1 450 042) (550 669)

Net cash and cash equivalents
Increase of 100 basis points would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 1 975 836 2 027 529 5 465 608 495
Decrease of 200 basis points would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of (3 951 672) (4 055 057) (10 930) (1 216 990)

Foreign exchange risk
ARB Global (Pty) Ltd and ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd hedge their exposure to foreign currency risk against stronger currencies by 
entering into forward exchange contracts where there is a pre-determined selling price. Such exposure arises from purchases in currencies 
other than in South African Rands. It is the Group's policy to make use of forward exchange contracts to eliminate the currency exposure on 
any individual transaction for which the payment is anticipated to be more than one month after the Group has entered into a firm commitment 
for a purchase. The forward exchange contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item.

Forward exchange contracts which relate to future commitments:

Amount in foreign currency purchased Forward exchange rate Maturity date

USD 125 288,13 1 USD = R10,739 30 June – 11 July 2014
USD 7 240,00 1 USD = R10,775 23 June – 3 July 2014
EUR 331 998,00 1 EUR = R15,344 7 July – 18 July 2014

The liabilities relating to these forward exchange contracts are disclosed in trade and other payables and are not material.

There have been no forward exchange contracts in respect of the following orders in foreign currency:

Expected payoff date

EUR 26 334 31 October 2014
EUR 126 740 14 October 2014

The Group reviews its foreign exchange exposure, including commitments, on an ongoing basis. The Group expects its foreign exchange 
contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure.
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Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

28. Financial risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
Change in USD
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of (142 348) (671 747) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 142 348 671 747 – –

Change in AUD
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in a  
reduction of profit before tax of – (19 964) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of – 19 964 – –

Change in Euro
Increase of 10% in the rate would result in  
a reduction of profit before tax of (509 418) (142 730) – –
Decrease of 10% in the rate would result in  
an improvement of profit before tax of 509 418 142 730 – –

Commodity price risk
Exposure to commodity price risk is reduced through the rationalisation of inventory levels of copper, aluminium and steel-related products. 
Stockholding levels of affected products are maintained at an average of two to three months.

Financial liabilities
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Payable in 1 to 12 months
Trade and other payables 260 999 831 265 668 600 4 141 219 1 847 172
Loan payable – – 200 028 19 170 027
Vendor – loan account 18 466 2 259 274 – –
Deferred lease payments 440 201 836 541 – –
Bank overdraft 79 37 448 – –

261 458 577 268 801 863 4 341 247 21 017 199

Capital management
The Group considers equity and long-term interest-bearing borrowings as capital.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products 
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group changes the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light 
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, repurchase shares or 
sell assets to reduce debt.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed 
capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital. Net debt 
is calculated as total debt (as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.

Capital comprises all components of equity.
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28. Financial risk management (continued)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 30 June was as follows:

Group Company

Figures in Rand 2014 2013 2014 2013

Total debt 321 428 636 317 271 374 23 653 257 39 449 959
Cash and cash equivalents (197 583 480) (202 752 892) (546 518) (60 849 521)

Net debt 123 845 156 114 518 482 23 106 739 (21 399 562)

Total equity 912 234 178 829 087 130 298 542 144 306 654 284

Debt to adjusted capital ratio 0,14:1 0,14:1 0,08:1 –0,07:1

The Group's debt-to-capital ratio during 2014 remained constant when compared to the prior year.

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are categorised in its entirety into the  
following three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement  
in its entirety:
• Level 1: fair value measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or liabilities;
•  Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the financial asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and
•  Level 3: fair value measured using inputs for the financial asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

Figures in Rand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis:
Group
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables – – 338 224 304 338 224 304
Cash and cash equivalents – 197 583 559 – 197 583 559
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 260 999 831 260 999 831
Bank overdraft – 79 – 79
Vendor loan account – – 18 466 18 466
Deferred lease payments – – 440 201 440 201

2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables – – 308 667 653 308 667 653
Cash and cash equivalents – 202 790 340 – 202 790 340
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 265 668 800 265 668 800
Bank overdraft – 37 448 – 37 448
Vendor loan account – – 2 259 274 2 259 274
Deferred lease payments – – 836 541 836 541
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28. Financial risk management (continued)
Company
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loan receivable – – 72 702 134 72 702 134
Trade and other receivables – – 10 515 10 515
Cash and cash equivalents – 546 518 – 546 518
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 4 141 219 4 141 219
Loans payable – – 200 028 200 028

2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loan receivable – – 46 703 474 46 703 474
Trade and other receivables – – 342 883 342 883
Cash and cash equivalents – 60 849 521 – 60 849 521
Deferred lease income – – 3 193 226 3 193 226
Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables – – 1 847 172 1 847 172
Loans payable – – 19 170 027 19 170 027

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities disclosed under level 3 have been determined in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models. All the above financial instruments are short-term in nature and their fair values approximate their carrying values.

29. Guarantees and contingent liabilities
A Group cross surety between ARB Holdings Ltd, ARB Global (Pty) Ltd and ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd to the value of R25 000 000 
has been issued in favour of Rand Merchant Bank for facilities granted.

An unlimited Group cross deed of suretyship between ARB Holdings Ltd, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd 
and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd has been issued in favour of Nedbank for facilities granted.

A limited guarantee to the value of R42 000 000 has been issued by ARB Holdings Ltd to Nedbank Ltd for the obligations of Eurolux (Pty) Ltd.

A limited guarantee to the value of R12 000 000 has been issued by Eurolux (Pty) Ltd to Nedbank Ltd for the obligations of Cathay Lighting 
(Pty) Ltd.

Guarantees issued by Nedbank Ltd on behalf of subsidiaries amounted to R3 653 879.

30. Commitments
Group
Operating lease commitments
The Group has eight (2013: eight) operating lease agreements in place as follows:
•  The Pretoria East property, described as Shop 1 and Office 1, Paragon Centre, 191 Corobay Avenue, Waterkloof Glen, is leased monthly 

from 1 March 2014 to 28 February 2016 from an external party. The period of the lease is 24 months and its average monthly instalment 
of R38 090 is payable in advance.

•  The Eurolux Johannesburg property, described as 10 Milkyway Avenue, Linbro Business Park, Sandton, is leased monthly from  
1 January 2012 to 30 November 2021 from a related party. The period of the lease is nine years and 11 months. However, the lease 
commitments have been calculated over a period of 36 months, as the lease is to be reviewed after each 36 month period to ensure that 
the rentals remain market related. The average monthly instalment of R466 021 is payable in advance.

•  The Eurolux Cape Town property, described as 9 Racecourse Road, Milnerton, is leased monthly from 1 January 2012 to  
30 November 2021 from a related party. The period of the lease is nine years and 11 months. However, the lease commitments have been 
calculated over a period of 36 months, as the lease is to be reviewed after each 36 month period to ensure that the rentals remain market 
related. The average monthly instalment of R380 413 is payable in advance.

•  The Polokwane property, described as Unit 4C in Building 4, Danielle Close, Corporate Park II, is leased monthly from an external  
party from 1 June 2010 until such time as the new Polokwane premises are ready for occupation. The average monthly instalment of  
R36 750 is payable monthly in advance.
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30. Commitments (continued)
Group (continued)
•  The CED Johannesburg property, described as Unit 5 and 6, Coronarium Business Park, Corporate North, Randjesfontein, is leased 

monthly from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 from an external party. The period of the lease is 24 months and the average monthly 
instalment of R43 759 is payable in advance.

•  The Bloemfontein property, described as Erf 29282, Bloemfontein CBD (78 – 80 Nelson Mandela Drive) is leased from 1 January 2013 to 
31 December 2014. The period of the lease is 24 months and the average monthly instalment of R140 400 is payable in advance.

•  The Kathu property is leased from an external party and is described as Erf 4344, Kathu – Kameeldoring Development, Kathu. The lease 
period is for 60 months, starting 1 July 2014 and ending 30 June 2019. The average monthly instalment of R37 363 is payable in advance.

•  The Rustenburg property, described as Unit H, Delta Place, 17 Kgwebo Avenue, Mabe Business Park, is leased monthly from 1 July 2014 
to 30 September 2014. The period of the lease is three months and the average monthly instalment of R28 186 is payable in advance.

Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 to 10 years Total

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases are as follows:
2014
Pretoria East 535 999 378 148 – 914 147
Cape Town – Eurolux 4 920 435 19 681 740 11 891 051 36 493 226
Johannesburg – Eurolux 6 027 722 24 110 888 14 566 995 44 705 605
Johannesburg – CED 406 161 – – 406 161
Bloemfontein 874 800 – – 874 800
Kathu 367 196 1 874 574 – 2 241 770
Rustenburg 84 559 – – 84 559

Total 13 216 872 46 045 350 26 458 046 85 720 268

2013
Nelspruit 266 683 – – 266 683
Pretoria East 318 280 – – 318 280
Bellville 198 756 – – 198 756
Cape Town – Eurolux 4 738 197 19 681 740 16 811 486 41 231 423
Johannesburg – Eurolux 5 804 473 24 110 888 20 594 716 50 510 077
Bloemfontein 1 684 800 874 800 – 2 559 600
Kathu 333 815 – – 333 815
Rustenburg 169 118 – – 169 118

Total 13 514 122 44 667 428 37 406 202 95 587 752

Capital commitments
After year-end the Group has:
•  signed purchase orders to purchase three delivery vehicles, including full maintenance plans, amounting to R1 446 028 including VAT; and
•  to complete construction of the new branch at Rustenburg amounting to R6 213 079 including VAT. This capital expenditure for construction 

of buildings will be financed through the operations of the business.

Company
Operating lease commitments
The Company has thirteen (2013: eleven) operating leases agreements in place with a subsidiary. The premises are leased monthly  
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017. The period of the leases is 36 months and the average aggregate monthly instalment is R1 955 653  
(2013: R1 557 142).
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30. Commitments (continued)
Company (continued)
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable  
operating leases are as follows:
2014
Durban 6 867 960 15 645 899 22 513 859
Durban North 420 360 957 622 1 377 982
East London 1 038 240 2 365 214 3 403 454
Johannesburg – Alrode 2 986 560 6 803 682 9 790 242
Johannesburg – Reuven 1 191 120 2 713 490 3 904 610
Richards Bay 1 308 720 2 981 395 4 290 115
Pietermaritzburg 1 304 880 2 972 647 4 277 527
Cape Town 1 940 400 4 420 425 6 360 825
Nelspruit 1 320 000 2 882 352 4 202 352
Pretoria West 402 240 916 343 1 318 583
Pretoria North 668 940 1 523 912 2 192 852
Pretoria Gezina 1 300 560 2 962 805 4 263 365
Centurion 765 000 1 742 746 2 507 746

Total 21 514 980 48 888 532 70 403 512

2013
Durban 7 487 880 – 7 487 880
Durban North 563 183 – 563 183
East London 1 309 716 – 1 309 716
Johannesburg – Alrode 4 099 068 – 4 099 068
Richards Bay 1 368 636 – 1 368 636
Pietermaritzburg 1 995 108 – 1 995 108
Cape Town 2 386 692 – 2 386 692
Pretoria West 334 553 – 334 553
Pretoria North 684 708 – 684 708
Pretoria Gezina 973 525 – 973 525
Centurion 675 865 – 675 865

Total 21 878 934 – 21 878 934

31. Segment report
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting on operating divisions of the Group that are regularly 
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.

Based on the management's monthly significant reporting segments, the segment report has been prepared by operating segment. As a 
result, the primary reporting format is by business segments with no secondary reporting format.
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The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding the Group's business segments 
for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 respectively:

Electrical Lighting Corporate

Inter-

company 

elimination and 

reallocation Total

31. Segment report (continued)
2014
Revenue
Segment revenue 1 875 876 648 350 815 274 35 057 534 (45 090 463) 2 216 658 993
Inter-segment revenue (100 085) (11 305 712) (33 062 576) 44 468 373 –

Sales to external customers 1 875 776 563 339 509 562 1 994 958 (622 090) 2 216 658 993

Results
Profit before interest and taxation 138 631 237 39 511 427 26 732 425 (1 845 518) 203 029 571
Investment income – – 26 200 000 (26 200 000) –
Interest received 11 196 920 79 061 6 701 478 (6 535 249) 11 442 210
Interest paid (1 271 441) (3 690 693) (1 762 431) 6 535 249 (189 316)

Profit before taxation 148 556 716 35 899 795 57 871 472 (28 045 518) 214 282 465
Taxation (41 139 366) (10 217 618) (8 695 763) 344 497 (59 708 250)

Profit for the year 107 417 350 25 682 177 49 175 709 (27 701 021) 154 574 215

Segment assets 827 198 603 183 788 137 324 890 701 (102 214 627) 1 233 662 814
Segment liabilities 268 171 891 84 727 979 27 031 562 (58 502 796) 321 428 636
Entity-wide disclosure
Sub-Saharan revenue 179 271 722 18 777 960 – – 198 049 682

2013
Revenue
Segment revenue 1 678 576 097 281 176 507 38 697 502 (53 909 134) 1 944 540 972
Inter-segment revenue (7 470 876) (10 062 462) (35 698 139) 53 231 477 –

Sales to external customers 1 671 105 221 271 114 045 2 999 363 (677 657) 1 944 540 972

Results
Profit before interest and taxation 101 300 810 30 497 891 30 052 490 (1 375 696) 160 475 495
Investment income – – 18 500 000 (18 500 000) –
Interest received 7 869 261 102 368 5 656 599 (3 210 058) 10 418 170
Interest paid (1 020 623) (2 481 548) (678 966) 3 210 058 (971 079)

Profit before taxation 108 149 448 28 118 711 53 530 123 (19 875 696) 169 922 586
Taxation (28 912 828) (7 959 688) (9 754 975) 385 199 (46 242 292)

Profit for the year 79 236 620 20 159 023 43 775 148 (19 490 497) 123 680 294

Segment assets 733 653 478 153 526 909 352 781 487 (93 565 922) 1 146 395 952
Segment liabilities 253 044 099 72 467 419 40 566 463 (48 769 159) 317 308 822
Entity-wide disclosure
Sub-Saharan revenue 99 796 573 14 402 671 – – 114 199 244
Geographical information
All trading activities and non-current assets of the segments are domiciled in South Africa. 

No single customer contributes more than 10% of the Group's revenue.




